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J. C. Tate General Merchandise Store consists of two frame and clapboard buildings 
located in Belfast, a small community five miles southeast of Lewisburg, the county 
seat of Marshall County. The buildings will be one hundred years old on June 29, 
1978, and the business has operated continuously during this period.

The two-story store building was built on stone piers, and the space under the sills 
has been filled in with sheet metal. The low gable roof is covered with galvanized 
steel roofing and has a single brick stove flue on the ridge. Except for the installatio 
of plate glass display windows, the facade (east elevation) has remained largely 
unchanged; this is the most distinctive feature of the building. The three-bay, 
three-tiered facade has two cornices and a recently added small porch roof; each of these 
elements has delicately jig-sawn, paired brackets and ornamental mouldings. Four 
pilasters clearly delineate the bays and emphasize the vertical-lines-of the facade. 
The -centered entrance still retains its headlights. Neither the north nor the south 
elevations have doors or windows. The rear (west) wall has four windows and a centered 
door.

The warehouse is located a few feet south of the store. Although simpler in style, it 
complements its companion building. The story-and-a-half warehouse also has a gable 
roof with galvanized steel roofing. The cut stone foundation piers have unusual cap­ 
stones which served as a form of rodent protection for this building which was used 
for the storage of meat, seed, grain, and hardware. The two-tiered, three bay facade 
(east elevation) has remained unchanged. It retains its original double-leaf panel 
doors and window shutters. (The owner states that the store also had similar doors 
and windows when it was erected.) A large sliding door is centered in the south wall, 
and the north wall has no apertures. A door and shuttered window are found in the west 
wall.

The interior of the store has board walls and ceilings and hardwood floors. Many of 
the original counters and cases remain, but the most distinctive feature of the 
interior is the merchandise shelves; these are original and have heavy cornices and 
pilasters which duplicate those found on the facade.
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William Williams (d. 1840) opened the first store in Marshall County in 1808. He 
purchased his merchandise in Nashville and hauled it by horse cart to the store. Later 
(ca. 1830) Robert Williams, his son, relocated the business in Belfast, an area formerly 
called The Crossroads,: ̂ at the junctiprL of the CpLumhia-Shelbyville and Nashville- 
Huntsyille roads. The younger Williams served as the community's- fiirspt postmaster, , With 
the coming of the railroad, the tpwn, was, moved closer. ,to the rail line, near the inter­ 
section of US 431 and Fishing Ford Road. In 1878 Robert Williams built the store and 
warehouse. Mr. and Mrs. Ed Tate now own and operate the store; he is the great-great- 
grandson of William Williains. Five generations of the same family have owned the busi­ 
ness and three of these have operated the store in the present building. This is the 
oldest commercial building in the Belfast area and the oldest business in the county.

Over the years the store has stocked patent medicines; food and yard goods; agricultural 
implements, supplies, and seed; and coffin handles. Farmers sold their turkeys and 
feathers, country butter, and animal pelts, and could obtain crop loans here. The 
town's post office was for many years located in the building, and it has occasionally 
been a polling place. According to the present owners, whiskey was not sold; this may 
have been because of the family's religious beliefs. The store is still a viable 
enterprise. The present owners sell food, ready-made clothing, shoes, towels, notions, 
greeting cards, arid stationery supplies. If the Tates do not have the merchandise that 
the customer wants, they will order it. ,

The building has changed little during the century it has operated. Large display 
windows replaced the original shuttered windows in ca. 1930, and a small porch roof 
has been added. The major elements in the interior remain. Mr. and Mrs. Tate intend 
to continue operating the store. Its present condition is ample evidence of the care 
taken by the family to maintain the building.

Store buildings customarily are utilitarian in style and construction. J. C. Tate 
General Merchandise Store is a notable exception to this precept. Robert Williams 
engaged craftsmen to erect a fine new store building which was worthy of a new town 
in which the railroad stopped. Bracketed cornices and pilasters rarely appear on 
small town, frame commercial buildings in the state. The store has been and continues 
to be a landmark in this little Middle Tennessee community.
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